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CITY OF SAN ANTONIO 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS (RFQ) FOR 
TERMINAL A RENOVATIONS PROJECT 

RFQ: CIMS-013011 
 

ADDENDUM #2, February 14, 2011 
 
 

Addendum #2 includes the responses to questions received prior to the Pre-Submission Conference, 
and includes revisions to the original RFQ. 
 

I. QUESTIONS AND CLARIFICATIONS TO RFQ 
 
The following questions were received regarding the clarification of work required under the RFQ: 
 

1. Question:  Our firm is certified as a WBE, SBE and DBE in Nevada, as this is where we are 
primarily located.  Will this certification have any impact or relevance to San Antonio? 

 
Response:  No.  The certification needs to be in San Antonio for this project. 

 
2. Question:  How in-depth would you like us to show our commitment to supporting San 

Antonio’s small business community and complying with the SBEDA program? 
 

Response:  There is paperwork in the RFQ which needs to be filled out in regards to the 
SBEDA requirement. (Subcontractor Utilization Commitment form)  Once the final firm has 
been selected and negotiations are finalized, there will be an additional form which outlines the 
SBEDA utilization in further detail. 

 
3. Question: Is Terminal A the same as Terminal 1? 

 
Response: When the new Terminal B was opened in November of 2010, Terminal 1 was 
renamed Terminal A. 
 

4. Question: Project schedule - What is the duration for soliciting bids? Item 11 page 3 of 19? 
 
Response: This will be determined during the programming phase. 
 

5. Question:  Are the construction documents required to be in REVIT? 
 

Response: This will be determined during the programming phase. 
 

6. Question:  Will the selected team be given as-builts in AutoCADD or REVIT? 
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Response: The selected firm will be provided with the pertinent Terminal A documents that 
are available.  Format of this information varies.  

 
7. Question: For CA services are you expecting periodic participation or full time on site 

participation? 
 

Response: Full time, on-site participation. 
 

8. Question: Will project method be design bid build? 
 

Response: This will be determined during the programming phase.  
 

9. Question: Will the city have a third party program or project manager? 
 

Response: This will be determined during the programming phase. 
 

10. Question: Will the building be required to be LEED certified or is there a target LEED rating 
for this project? 

 
Response: This will be determined during the programming phase. 

 
11. Question: Is budgeting a part of assessment phase? 
 

Response: Yes. 
 

12. Question: Should the assessment also consider capacity of existing services and utilities to 
the project site? 

 
Response: The assessment will only cover the existing building and site conditions within 50 
feet of the structure. 
 

13. Question: How many gates are a part of the project and how many are currently occupied or 
leased? 

 
Response: All existing 16 gates are currently in use and are part of the assessment. 
 

14. Question: Is there a master concession lease? 
 
  Response: Not at this time. 
 

15. Question: Why is this contract anticipated to be a term contract? 
 

Response: Currently, the contract is expected to be for a 3-year term with two 1-yr 
extensions available.  Negotiations could modify the terms if warranted. 

 
16. Question: Is there any flexibility in the duration of the various phases of the proposed 

scope? 
 

Response: Not at this time. 
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17. Question: Is there a target project completion date? 
 
  Response: This will be determined during the scoping/programming phase. 
 

18. Question: Does the airport have a policy on the inclusion of art in its facilities? 
 
  Response: Yes. This will be addressed during the programming phase. 

19. Question: Article III of the RFQ states that written questions are to be submitted 3 calendar 
days in advance of the Pre-Submittal Conference however, Article VII, paragraph A.2. states 
that written questions may be submitted until February 17th.  Will questions still be accepted 
until the 17th?  

Response: Article III requests written questions three days before the Pre-Submittal 
Conference in order to expedite that meeting.  The deadline for all written questions is 
February 17, 2011 at 4:00 pm.   

20. Question: On page 4, G. Statement of Qualifications is limited to 15 pages but the submittal 
checklists says 10 pages. Please clarify. 

 
Response: Ten (10) pages are allowed for the Statement of Qualifications. 

 
21. Question: Do subconsultants need to fill out Forms 4 and 5? 

 
Response: Subconsultants are not required to fill out the Discretionary Disclosure form or the 
Litigation Disclosure form.  However, if you are entering into a partnership for this project, all 
partnering parties are required to fill out all forms. 

 
22. Question: On the revised Submittal Checklist and Table of Contents form, under the Statement 

of Qualifications section, it specifies to index as Tab “ 7”. In the revised Submittal Document 
Requirements, under the Statement of Qualifications Section, it specifies to index as Tab “6”. 
Which is the correct Tab number? 

 
Response: The Statement of Qualifications should be listed as Tab 7, Org. Chart - Tab 8, Proof 
of Insurance – Tab 9, Resumes – Tab 10 and the Letters of Reference – Tab 11. 

 
23. Question: The SBEDA subcontracting goal was set at 30%.  Does our selection of subs need to 

be race conscious? 
 

Response: No.  The SBEDA goal is race neutral. 
  
24. Question: Is the SBEDA 30% subcontracting goal calculated on the whole contract or just the 

subcontracting portion? 
 

Response: The 30% subcontracting requirement, on this solicitation, is calculated as a 
percentage of the entire contract value. 
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25. Question: Will an overnight proposal package, sent to the City Clerk’s office, arrive normally 
or does it go through a sorting process which could extend the delivery time? 

 
Response: An overnight package should arrive at the City’s Clerk’s office without additional 
delay; however, take note that the City does not accept any responsibility for late submittals.  
The City Clerks Office confirmed the physical mailing address (100 Military Plaza, City Hall, 
2nd Floor, San Antonio, Texas  78205) can be utilized for mailing packages. 
 

26. Question: Are the dates listed in the Scope of Work Calendar Days or Business Days? 
 

Response: Calendar Days. 
 
 

II. REVISIONS TO THE RFQ 
 

1. SECTION I. BACKGROUND – Modified wording regarding contract being Exhibit A.  
Replace sentence with: 

“A draft copy of the anticipated contract for this Project has been included as an attachment.” 
 

2. SECTION IV. SUBMITTAL DOCUMENT REQUIREMENTS – The page limit on the 
Statement of Qualifications section is limited to ten (10) pages and the tab number for this 
section has been modified.  Replace section H with: 

 
H. STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS - Respondent shall prepare and submit a 
narrative document that addresses all evaluation criteria in Section VIII of this RFQ. This 
section is limited to ten (10) pages, not including forms and attachments, and should be 
labeled or indexed as Tab “7” in submittal.   Sufficient information must be included which 
allows the City to determine that the Respondent possesses the minimum qualifications 
outlined in the RFQ. 

 
3. SECTION IV. SUBMITTAL DOCUMENT REQUIREMENTS – The tab number on 

several sections has changed.  Replace sections I through L with the following: 
 

I. ORGANIZATIONAL CHART – Respondent shall prepare and submit a project 
organizational chart.  The chart, limited to a maximum of one (1) page, shall be indexed and 
labeled as Tab “8” in submittal. 

 
J. PROOF OF INSURABILITY (Indexed and labeled as Tab “9”):  Respondent shall 
submit a letter from insurance provider stating provider’s commitment to insure the 
Respondent for the types of coverages and at the levels specified in the attached Contract 
Document Template if awarded a contract in response to this RFQ.  Respondent shall also 
submit a copy of their current insurance certificate. 

 
K. RESUMES (Optional) – Indexed and labeled as Tab “10”.  Resumes for each key team 
member shall be limited to a maximum length of one (1) page each (no company information), 
with a maximum of ten (10) pages total, and may offer information regarding additional 
previously completed projects (not highlighted in the project sheets requested as part of the 
Qualification Statement). 

 



CITY OF SAN ANTONIO   5 of 5 
TERMINAL A RENOVATIONS 
CIMS 013011 

L. LETTERS OF REFERENCE (Optional) – Indexed and labeled as Tab “11”. 
Respondent may provide a maximum of five (5) letters of reference. 

 
4. SECTION VI. SUBMITTAL INSTRUCTIONS – The City Clerks Office has agreed to allow 

submittal packages to be sent to their physical address.  Replace mailing address on original 
RFQ with:  

   Mailing Address: 
 City Clerk’s Office, Attn: Capital Improvement Management Services Department 

100 Military Plaza 
City Hall, 2nd Floor, 

 San Antonio, Texas  78205 
 

5. SECTION II. SCOPE OF WORK – Phased work is scheduled in Calendar Days.  Replace
 Phase 1 sentence with: 

 The consultant will be expected to accomplish this phase of the work within forty-
five (45) Calendar days of award of contract. 

 
Replace Phase 2 sentence with: 

The consultant will be expected to accomplish this phase of the work within forty-
five (45) Calendar days of completion of Phase 1 services. 

 
Replace Phase 3 sentence with: 

The consultant will be expected to accomplish this part of the work within one 
hundred twenty (120) Calendar days of completion of Phases 1 and 2. 

 
 
 
 

END OF REVISIONS 

No other items, dates, or deadlines for this RFQ are changed. 
 


